	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	1
	B
	B.4.1
	Section B.1 Schedule of Services state approximately 450,000 labor hours for each year and SectionB.2 Optional Quantities state approximately 25,000 optional labor hours for each year.  However, B.4.1 states the Government intends to only award 200,000 labor hours each year.  

Please clarify what is the total amount of labor hours that the Government intends to award?  
	We anticipate it will be 450,000 hours per year. Section B.4.1 was revised.

	2
	B
	B.4.1
	If the hours that the Government intends to award is less than what is to be proposed in Sections B.1 and B.2, are the proposed hours only for evaluation purposes to determine the maximum cumulative dollar ceiling?
	See answer to question #1.

	3
	B
	B.4.3(c)
	Will USPTO please clarify the roles and descriptions of each role?
	The role of the Program Manager is to oversee the entire program. The role of the Project Manager is to oversee the individual task orders. The Project Manager is not considered key personnel.  See Section B.4.3(c) and H.2 in the final RFP.

	4
	B
	B.4.3(c)
	Can the Government provide the specific items that constitute Program Management Support Costs?
	See Section B.4.3 (c) in the final RFP.

	5
	B
	B.4.3(c)
	Please clarify if related travel reflects only local travel from Contractor site to the USPTO site and non-local travel (if any) is considered an Other Direct Cost to be negotiated at the task order level (B.4.5 and H.23)?
	Local travel is not an allowable cost in this contract.

	6
	B
	B.5(f)
	Will this technical interface occur prior to resource estimates are submitted or after award at the kick-off meeting referenced in Section F.5.1?
	Yes, prior to resource estimate.  See Section B.5.(a)

	7
	B
	B.7.a.1  
	“Earned Value Management (EVM) shall be applicable to discrete task orders that exceed $200,000 and exceed 90 days to complete.”  However, other sections of the RFP say the EVM is applicable at a threshold “TBD.” 

Which is correct?
	Earn Value Management shall be applicable to $1M discrete Task Orders, see final RFP.

	8
	B
	B.4.b
	Pursuant to the language stating that Task Orders will be performance-based and will contain the performance metrics when issued, have those metrics historically (or does the Government contemplate in the future) covered both performance metrics (e.g. defects/LOC) and productivity metrics (e.g. incident resolution/unit of time or incident resolution/unit of time and money)?
	Yes – we intend to add performance metrics in the future.  USPTO has requested the contractor to propose a QASP with metrics to show how they will provide a quality product(s) and support. The QASP will be base lined for the contract award. Metrics in the QASP should include efficiency in code, code coverage, defects per lines of code, design defects, testing defects, production defects, adherence to standards, CM build success rate, installation issues, productivity metrics (e.g. incident resolution/unit of time) and others as identified by the contractor.

	9
	B
	B.4.3.a
	Will all Task Orders issued on a T&M basis be priced in accordance with the Section B.1. Labor Rate Tables – as specified in this section – or in accordance with Attachment J-13 as specified in section L.9.2.2.1?
	Yes – Task Orders will be issued as Labor Hours.  See final RFP section B.4.3.a, which is revised.

	10
	B
	B.4
	Can an estimate be given of the proportions of tasks expected in each of the payment types (e.g. FFP, T&M, etc.)?
	We anticipate 95% will be labor hours.

	11
	B
	B.4
	How will USPTO monitor the performance of subcontractors and/or actual participation percentage of subcontractors?
	Q.1 It is not the responsibility of the USPTO to monitor these subcontractors, it is the responsibility of the prime.
Q.2 Initially, the prime submits the subcontracting plan which will be reviewed for compliance and the prime reports the updates on an annual basis. 

	12
	B
	B.1-2
	Please provide an explanation for the CLIN breakout (0001, 0002A, 0002B, 0002C).
	These are only optional hours if needed.  For example if the anticipated 450,000 hours are used up during the base year, then the optional quantities in CLIN 0002A will be exercised.

	13
	B
	B.1-2
	The number of hours listed in B.1 and B.2 add up to 525,000 hours annually. However, in Section B.4.1.a, it states “The Government intends to order up to 200,000 direct labor hours during the contract base year, 200,000 direct labor hours for option year 1, 2, 3, and 4.” 

Please clarify the reason for the discrepancy.
	See answer to question #1.

	14
	B
	B.4.3.a
	When labor categories are developed, please include within them minimum education and number of years experience requirements for each position.
	See Attachment in Section J for Labor Categories.

	15
	B
	B.4.3.b.1
	Will the Government provide access to PTONet upon contract award, or will the contractor be required to pay for access?
	Access will be provided upon contract award.

	16
	B
	B.2
	What are these hours intended to cover in the scope of work?
	See answer to question #12.

	17
	B
	B.4.1.  
	Should the 200,000 direct labor hours be 450,000?
	See answer to question #1.

	18
	B
	B.1 & B.2
	We understand that USPTO will provide labor categories in Attachment J-13 and that we are to provide fully burdened fixed hourly rates for each in our Price Proposal.  

Will USPTO also provide hour estimates for each labor category and estimates for incidental hardware, commercial off-the-shelf software and ODCs and require the contractors to provide a total price for the contract?
	USPTO will not provide individual estimates for each labor category; it is the offeror’s responsibility to provide an estimate for each labor category. For incidental hardware and commercial off-the-shelf products we estimate a Not-to-Exceed Amount of $1,000,000 ($1mm).


	19
	B
	B.4.1(a)
	The clause states that the government intends to order 200,000 hours in base year and option years 1, 2, 3, and 4.  Section B.1 includes 450,000 hours for each year.  

Please clarify.
	See answer to question #1.

	20
	B
	B.5
	After award of the master contract, would USPTO be receptive to two or more awardees teaming together to pursue individual task orders?
	Yes, USPTO would be receptive of two or more awardees teaming together to pursue individual Task Orders.

	21
	B
	B.1
	Section B.1 (a) on page 1 specifies that the Government intends to award one of the multiple contracts to a small business. It further mentions that the small business award is not considered a small business set-aside. 

Will the Government please clarify this statement? 
	This statement cannot be clarified further. As stated previously, it is the intent of the Government to make an award to one small business if that entity is capable of fulfilling the contract requirements and in accordance with the evaluation criteria set forth in section M of the RFP. However, no portion of the solicitation is designated as a small business set-aside.

	22
	B
	B.1
	Section B.1 (a) on page 1 specifies that the Government intends to award one of the multiple contracts to a small business. 

Are there any specific types of work earmarked for the small business? Are there any specific hours earmarked for the small business?
	See answer to question #21.

	23
	      B
	B.2
	Section B.2 'Optional Quantities' on page 2 mentions a total of 125,000 hours (25,000 hours for the base and four option years). 

Is this in addition to the 2,250,000 hours mentioned in B.1? We request the Government to elaborate on what these 'Optional Quantities' refer to and how they are different from the hours in B.1.
	See answer to question #12.

	24
	B
	B.4.1(a)
	Section B.4.1 (a) on page 5 mentions that the Government intends to order up to 200,000 direct labor hours for each of the contract base and option years. However, section B.1 CLIN 0001 on page 1 mentions 450,000 hours for each of the contract base and option years. 

Please clarify the differences.
	See answer to question #1.

	25
	B
	B.4.1
	There appears to be an inconsistency between this paragraph and the CLIN tables on the preceding pages, since there are no numbers in those CLIN tables that refer to or add up t o the 200,000 direct labor hours per year mentioned here.   

Would USPTO please clarify the intent of this paragraph further?  
	See answer to question #1.

	26
	B
	B.3
	What does the Government mean by a "Labor Hour" contract? Does the Government mean a Cost Plus Fixed Fee Completion type task?
	As stated in FAR 16.602.. 


	27
	B
	B.4
	In these Sections and throughout the solicitation the Government refers to discrete task orders for development efforts. The Offeror suggests that for clarity the Government consider referring to these types of tasks as "Development" type task orders, and indicating whether they are to be T&M or CPFF Completion type tasks.  Maintenance type tasks should be referred to as "O&M" or "Maintenance" type tasks, and the Government should indicate whether they are to be T&M or CPFF LOE. The relevant language throughout this solicitation appears to indicate that the Government will be awarding T&M, CPFF LOE (Term) or Completion type contracts
	For clarification purposes, the intent is for this to be a labor hour contract.

	28
	B
	B.1 & B.2
	 Please provide a description/explain the differences between the CLINs and what the Government expects the contractors to bid on for each of these CLINS.
	See answer to question #12.

	29
	B
	B.4.b
	Will the government provide specific SLAs for TO work and how will these performance based metrics be developed?
	As stated in B.4.b “Task order issued under the contracts will be performance based and will contain the performance metrics when issued.”

	30
	B
	B.4.1
	In the tables in Sections B.1 and B.2, the Government has indicated a total of 475,000 hours for the Base Year and Option Years 1 - 4. 

Please clarify whether the Government intends to award 475,000 hours or 200,000 during these periods.
	See answer to question #1.

	31
	B
	B.4.2 & B.5
	Will the government please advise if these are LH LOE tasks, FFP, T&M or CP?
	See answer to question #10.

	32
	B
	B.4.3.b.1
	Is the Government asking the Offeror to price both contractor and government site rates?
	Yes, onsite and offsite rates are requested as not all work will be performed at the USPTO.

	33
	B
	B.1
	The Offeror would like the Government to clarify place of performance. C.2 seems to imply all work shall be performed on Government site when B.1 and B.4.3 indicate there will be both Government and Contractor work sites.
	Primarily work will be performed at the contractor work site, but some task orders may require work to be performed at the government work site.

	34
	B
	B.4.5
	Can the Government clarify what it means by "[t]he cost of general purpose items required for the conduct of the Contractor's normal business operations?"
	Any cost incurred as a general operating expense should be included in your fully loaded labor rates as stated in B.4.5 b.

	35
	B
	B.4.5
	Can the Government clarify what it means by "all direct costs of a task order that are not attributable to the labor categories?"
	See FAR 31.202

	36
	B
	B.5
	The Offeror suggests that the Government revise the first sentence to read "The USPTO will provide each vendor's Contract Officer with a Task Statement of Work (SOW) for each task order to be issued."
	This section was moved to section G.8, no other changes to this section were made. 

	37
	B
	B.5
	The attachments in Section J did not accompany this DRAFT RFP.  How does the government intend to decide which contractor can do the work best if it is only based on resource estimates?
	The attachments will be included in the final RFP. Evaluation will be based on the Evaluation Factors stated in section M of the RFP factors.

	38
	B
	B.6
	Is the government asking contractors to provide a fully detailed WBS and Schedule for each task as part of the project plan?
	Discrete Task Orders will need a WBS and pricing info.

	39
	B
	B.7 & C.12.2.8
	Can the Government clarify the amount identified in B.7.a.1? Is it the same as the TBD amount in C.12.2.8?
	See final RFP.

	40
	B
	B.7.e
	Does the government mean that Primes must flow down the requirements of section B.7.d to all subs?  Please clarify.
	Yes - It is the responsibility of the prime contractor to flow down the requirement. 

	41
	B
	B.7
	Can the Government please whether subcontractors must have a compliant EVM System at the time of Contract Award vs. time of proposal submission? Also, is the vendor to provide the list of applicable subcontractors?
	It is the responsibility of the prime to have a compliant EVM System. Compliance can be negotiated per language of section G.10.b in the RFP. Yes, the vendor should provide a list of applicable subcontractors. Section B.7 moved to G.10

	42
	B
	B.1
	Will the Government consider providing access to these and other reference materials, possibly in the form of a reference library or alternative forum for access?
	A Reference Library will be posted as documents become available:

http://www.uspto.gov/about/vendor_info/current_acquisitions/sdi_ng/sdinghom.jsp


	43
	B
	B
	The RFP indicates/anticipates different rates for onsite and offsite labor hours. Does the USPTO anticipate requiring that specific tasks be accomplished at a government location?   If yes, might USPTO define which will be on-site and which will be off-site
	Location of onsite vs. offsite location will be determined on an ad hoc basis prior to the start of each Task Order. 


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	44
	C
	C.25.1 Lab Details
	C.25.1 states “provide a lab and C.26.1 states provide a development lab plan. 

Can the Govt. clarify which they desire? And should the contractor assume the resources provided to support the lab are PTO resources?
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	45
	C
	C.19.2
	Can the Govt. define the word “local” for example relative to Govt. GFE? 
	All code, documents, scripts, configuration files, libraries, other files used for the delivery by the Contractors shall be stored daily in USPTO designated repositories. The contractor performing the work shall perform the “checking” to the repository. Computers, network drives, external drives used to implement, unit test, test, debug are considered local. See final RFP section C.12.9.2

	46
	C
	C.19.1
	In-process code would normally be stored on a developer’s local machine or network until testing is complete and the code is ready for deployment.

Paragraph C.19.1 mandates that all development code be checked-in daily. Paragraph C.19.2 requires the contractor not store code locally. Is the intent of these two requirements that all development work be performed on systems with LAN connections to PTONet or other secure USPTO code repository?

Will contractors be allowed to assign individuals to tasks that cannot work on-site at or near the USPTO campus? If so, will VPN or other remote access accounts be made available to these individuals?
	All code, documents, scripts, configuration files, libraries, other files used for the delivery by the Contractors shall be stored daily in USPTO designated repositories. The contractor performing the work shall perform the “checkin” to the repository. Computers, network drives, external drives used to implement, unit test, test, debug are considered local.   

2. Yes, all contractors shall have access to the USPTO code repository. Contractors will be provided VPN access.

3. Unless an exception is identified, there is no travel associated with this contract. Contractors are expected to be available at USPTO if needed for meetings, investigations etc. VPN access will be provided. See final RFP section C.12.9.1

	47
	C
	C.2
	Please clarify if USPTO expects the SDI&T work to be performed solely within government-provided space? 
	Work is not expected to be performed solely at USPTO provided space. However, some work will require the contractor to be on site for investigations, meetings, reviews, testing and equipment setup etc. See final RFP.

	48
	C
	C.3.1
	Will there be a blanket Task Order for this emergency support or will it be built into individual Task Orders?  
	This will be on a per Task Order basis depending on the SLA for the systems and applies to discrete and LOE. 

	49
	C
	C.3.1
	Will this apply to both Discrete and Level of Effort Task Orders?
	See answer to question #48.

	50
	C
	C.3.1
	Does this mean that the contractor will normally not support production software for work-at-home, electronic filing, and other USPTO applications when they operate outside these hours?
	See answer to question #48.

	51
	C
	C.4
	How will knowledge transfer be quantified?
	The government expects contractors to ensure that all issues, operational procedures, configuration changes, work arounds, are documented, added to a defect tracker or checked into the CM or a designated repository and USPTO notified. The contractors shall ensure designs, builds, test plans, unit test cases, equipment and testbed plans, deployment instructions, bug fixes, configurations are updated properly when a change is made and the updated document checked into the CM repository. A contractor shall ensure all source, libraries, build, configuration files, COTS/GOTS and other files required for delivery are checked in to CM repository. CM shall be capable of reproducing all production systems. These are activities that are required as part of this SOW. See final RFP section C.4

	52
	C
	C.4
	Will the government pay for the development and maintenance of a continuing Knowledge Transfer Program?
	At this time, USPTO does not anticipate developing a Knowledge Transfer Program. Please see answer to Question 51 for details. The contractor shall provide the appropriate information as part of meeting the terms of the SOW.

	53
	C
	C.4
	What criteria will the government use to accept that knowledge transfer is complete/adequate? 
	See answer to question #51.

	54
	C
	C.9
	Can USPTO please clarify what is the appropriate Section for USPTO Policies covering Maintenance Activities?
	All maintenance activities shall follow USPTO standards, policies, guidelines and procedures as described in C.13 of the final RFP.

	55
	C
	C.9
	Will the clarification be a comprehensive list and description of all USPTO application systems?
	The USPTO systems to be covered shall be designated at the TOS level. The current list of systems is maintained in the AIX Matrix and will change as systems are added, replaced or retired.

	56
	C
	C.12.2.6
	Could the USPTO clarify the phrase, “weekly IFP meeting?”
	This should read “weekly technical meeting”. The basic Agenda will be Technical Status of projects under the contractor. Topics will include status, schedule, issues. We may ask the architect(s) to attend to address specific technical or design issues. Design and Code Reviews will be separate. See final RFP.

	57
	C
	C.16.8
	Are the incentives something that the Contractor would propose in the QASP?  
	USPTO anticipates using incentives which would be identified at the Task Order level. These may include incentives identified in a Contractor’s QASP. See final RFP section C.12.6.9

	58
	C
	C.17.7
	Could the USPTO elaborate on what form “negative incentives” might take?
	Negative incentives may be financial, may be exclusion of the contractor from competing on the next TOS, or remediation on contractor’s time. See final RFP section C.12.7.7

	59
	C
	C.19
	Can the USPTO please elaborate on section,  C.19.2 “The contractor shall not store software code on their local machines or systems?”
	All code, documents, scripts, configuration files, libraries, other files used for the delivery by the Contractors shall be stored daily in USPTO designated repositories. The contractor performing the work shall perform the checking to the repository. Computers, network drives, external drives used to implement, unit test, test, debug are considered local. See final RFP section C.12

	60
	C
	C.22.11  
	Can USPTO please clarify the use of the word “smoke” in the requirement?
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	61
	C
	C.22.25  
	Can the Government specify further what software the contractor is not to test?
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	62
	C
	C.22.26  
	Can the Government clarify which systems are not to be QC’d or IV&V’d by the contractor?
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	63
	C
	C.28
	Can USPTO provide the missing, referenced metrics?
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	64
	C
	C.30
	Can USPTO please clarify the reference to the “LH contract?”
	“LH” stands for Labor Hour, see final RFP section C.16

	65
	C
	C.30
	Section C.30 provides those metrics that will apply to all task orders and Section F.6 (b) (8) provides a different set of metrics.  Please clarify if the list provided in C.30 are mandatory and the list in F.6 (b) (8) are examples of what may be included in addition to C.30 dependent upon the task order.
	C.30 metrics are the overall categories that the contractor will be evaluated against. F.6(b)(8) provides further detail on the Quality Performance category in C.30. See final RFP, sections C.16 and F.6.b.8

	66
	C
	C.31
	Can the USPTO please provide appropriate information?
	This section has been deleted, see final RFP.

	67
	C
	C.31
	Could USPTO indicate the purpose of this missing paragraph in the final RFP?
	See Question 66 for Response.

	68
	C
	C.24.1
	Is PTO’s intent that the contractors will set up the own lab?
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	69
	C
	C.24.1
	What USPTO policies and standards govern a lab management plan?
	Deleted, see final RFP. All USPTO policies, procedures and standards must be followed, including access requests, intake forms, CM policies and procedures. 

	70
	C
	C.23
	Has this section been intentionally omitted?
	This is a number issue only and sections will be renumbered see final RFP.

	71
	C
	C.22.26
	It is our assumption that the QC/IV&V activities identified in this clause are similar to the types of activities which are currently performed on the SRA/Galaxy IV&V contract, and do not apply to typical SDLC QC activities associated with code reviews, etc.  Is this a correct assumption?
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	72
	C
	C.23
	There is no section C.23.  Please consider renumbering section C.
	Thank you. This is a number issue only and sections will be renumbered.  

	73
	C
	C.2
	The RFP currently states “the primary place of performance will be the USPTO Campus…or a Government approved alternate work location within a USPTO facility.” Is the Government open to the idea of contractor development and/or testing being done off-site to provide cost savings to the Government?
	Yes.

	74
	C
	C.20.2
	Please provide the USPTO Defect Management Plan as an attachment to the final solicitation.
	Defect Management Plan will be available in the Contracts Library. Please see Question 92 for link. A contractor with expertise in this area can propose their own additional policies and procedures.

	75
	C
	C.22.25
	The requirement states “Contractor shall not conduct testing activities on any software developed, designed or configured by their own organization.” While we agree that final IV&V should not be conducted by the same contractor due to potential conflicts of interest, testing leading up to the final IV&V allows the contractor to ensure the customer receives a quality product and is a normal activity required during software development. We suggest the requirement be rewriting to state “Contractor shall not conduct final IV&V testing activities on any software developed, designed or configured by their own organization.”
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	76
	C
	C.26.2
	Please provide the USPTO Architecture and Development Guidelines as an attachment to the final solicitation.
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	77
	C
	C.27.5
	In C.27.5, the amount at which EVM is required is undefined. However, in B.7.a.1, the RFP states “Earned Value Management (EVM) shall be applicable to discrete task orders that exceed $200,000 and exceed 90 days to complete.” Please specify the task size threshold at which EVM will be required at the Task Order level.
	See answer to question #7 and final RFP section C.13.5

	78
	C
	C.25.1
	Is the test lab to be set up at the contractor's off-site work location? If so, please define C&A, security, and government access requirements and clarify “as closely as possible” to the production environment.
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	79
	C
	C.26.2
	Are you referring to the contractor furnishing their own development workstations, that have an IDE that supports local construction and testing? Or, is the intent for the contractor to assist the agency in setting up and running the agency's on-site labs, i.e. USPTO hardware, software, infrastructure.
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	80
	C
	C.2
	C.2 identifies the primary place of performance as the government site at 600 Dulany Street while F.3.a identifies the primary place of performance as contractor site.  

Please clarify.
	The government anticipates that the work specified under this SOW is to be performed primarily at the contractor’s facility unless otherwise specified Task Order. Meetings will be held at USPTO in Alexandria, VA. There may be occasions when the contractor is asked to temporarily work at the USPTO site.

	81
	C
	C.9
	Please provide the complete section reference.
	All maintenance activities shall follow USPTO standards, policies, guidelines and procedures as described in C.13. states the work for maintaining existing systems. All development activities performed under maintenance follow the standard policies and procedures. The production support details will be provided on a per Task Order basis. Maintenance includes support of changes in production including network, patches, password updates (including 90 day resets), research of issues or topics resulting in recommendations, analysis of production issues, outages, crashes, hangs, missing data, display issues, data load issues, slowness, identification and documentation of work arounds, identification of long term solutions, reporting and root cause analysis, designing, updates based on reviews, implementing, unit testing, creating new unit tests and fixing existing for the solution, supporting the test process, deploying, monitoring the deployment, appropriate documentation updates. Work around solutions may require scripts and implementation and and/or manual steps identified and documented.  The contractor, on a continual basis, shall identify and document opportunities to reduce operational costs either by documenting software changes, bug fixes that reduce operations or identifying areas where operations can be moved to USPTO personnel.  

	82
	C
	C.12.2.4
	This sentence seems to be missing a word or phrase.
	The contractor shall provide written notification within the same business day when dependencies, impacts, issues arise that risk or impact the schedule.

	83
	C
	C.12.2.8
	Section B.7 requires us to use ANSI/EIA Standard 748.  We have several questions:  Per B.7, should we assume that the threshold for requiring EVM reporting will be $200,000 and 90 day POP?
	See answer to question #7.

	84
	C
	C.12.2.8
	Will EVM costs be part of the TO or should they be incorporated into our fully burdened hourly rates as part of the PMO?  See section B.4.3(c) that calls for PMO costs to be part of the T&M rates.  
	EVM Cost will be part of the task order.

	85
	C
	C.12.2.8
	If these costs are to be incorporated into the hourly rates, could the government provide an anticipated distribution of the # of discrete TOs vs. # LOE TOs, and an estimate of the # of discrete TOs that will exceed the $200,000 threshold?
	It is anticipated that 90 percent of the work will be LOE TOS.  EVM threshold for discrete task will be $1M (see question #7 response).

	86
	C
	C.13.3, C.16.8, C.17.7, C.17.9
	Each of these clauses refers to penalties or positive and negative incentives.  Will USPTO provide defined performance metrics to trigger the penalties or incentives as well as a definition of the penalty/incentive?  Is it USPTO’s intention to define this at the Task Order level?
	The QASP shall define the metrics. Incentives, if any will be per Task Order. See final RFP.

	87
	C
	C.24/C.25/C.26
	These SOW areas raise a number of questions:

Are contractors being asked to provide and manage test and development labs separate from the labs currently used at PTO?

Will labs be located at contractor or government site?

Does PTO anticipate issuing TOs to perform these tasks or will contractors be expected to maintain these facilities throughout the life of the contract?

Will all successful contractor be required to maintain separate lab facilities?

Will the costs associated with the labs be covered under TOs?
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	88
	C
	C.24/C.25/C.26
	Will USPTO provide the requirements for the labs in terms of : 1) facilities - physical location, HVAC requirements, Power Requirements, security, 2) Hardware/Server/EMC storage, 3) Software : OS, DB, App Server, COTS packages, Development tools, MS Office, etc., 4) Network equipment, datacom lines, etc.
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	89
	C
	C.28
	The clause implies that metrics were to be provided.  Will these be provided with the task orders?
	USPTO has requested the contractor propose a QASP with metrics from the contractor to show how they will provide a quality product(s) and support. The QASP will be baselined for the contract award. Metrics in the QASP should include efficiency in code, code coverage, defects per lines of code, design defects, testing defects, production defects, adherence to standards, CM build success rate, installation issues and others as identified by the contractor. This should have read as Metrics shall be updated on a Task Order basis based on the volume, complexity of the work and the timeliness and quality of the contractor. See final RFP section C.14

	90
	C
	C.2
	Section C.2 on page 11 mentions that the primary place of performance will be the USPTO campus. Will any of the work be done at the contractor's site? If so, is there an estimate of the work that will be performed at the contractor site?
	The government anticipates that the work specified under this SOW is to be performed primarily at the contractor’s facility unless otherwise specified Task Order. Meetings will be held at USPTO in Alexandria, VA. There may be occasions when the contractor is asked to temporarily work at the USPTO site.

	91
	C
	C.8.2
	Section C.8.2 on page 12 lists a variety of items that the contractor shall have mastered. Section C.8.3 on page 12/13 lists a variety of items that the contractor shall demonstrate having capability. Please clarify as to how the Government wants the contractor to demonstrate ("capability") versus the term "mastering"?
	 These terms are interchangeable in this context. The government is looking for pools of resources that are proficient in the area. PTO has a wide range of technologies and when a TOS is competed, the winning contractor shall provide resources that are proficient in the technology.

	92
	C
	C.10.1
	Section C.10.1 on page 13 lists two website links that describe the USPTO SDLC processes. These website links are not working. We request the Government to make these links available at the earliest.
	See final RFP.

	93
	C
	C.12.2.8
	Section C.12.2.8 describes the Earned Value Management Reporting for the task orders under this contract. Can the contractor assume EVM for discreet tasks of $200,000 as stated in B.7 on page 8?
	See answer to question #7.

	94
	C
	C.28
	Section C.28 on page 23 mentions use of metrics to evaluate contractor performance. However, there are no details on the specific metrics. We request the Government to release the details on the specific metrics.
	See answer to question #89.

	95
	C
	C.30
	Section C.30 on page 23 mentions the LH contact. We request the Government to clarify as to what an LH contract means?
	See answer to question #64.

	96
	C
	C.9
	In which section are the Maintenance Activities described?
	All maintenance activities shall follow the same USPTO standards, policies, guidelines and procedures as described in C.13 of the Draft RFP including the SDLC process. The USPTO systems to be covered shall be designated at the TOS level. The current list of systems is maintained in the AIX Matrix and will change as systems are added, replaced or retired. Maintenance activities include analysis of production issues, updates and report on investigations, identification of immediate resolution or work around, root cause analysis, identification of long term solutions, update of scripts. Specific Maintenance activities shall be described on a Task Order Basis.



	97
	C
	C.22.26
	C22.26 QC and IV&V: Is this going to replace the current SRA/Galaxy’s IV&V contract? Please clarify.
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	98
	C
	C.29
	Will the Government require a QASP to be provided as part of the final RFP response, or will the QASP be developed after award?  Please clarify.
	See answer to question #89.

	99
	C
	C.25.1
	“The contractor shall provide a test lab that simulates the production environment as closely as possible while not actually interacting with it.”

Is the Government’s intent for this test lab to be on the USPTO site or the contractor’s site?
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	100
	C
	C.25
	The requirement indicates that the contractor is to provide a test lab. What are the necessary specifications for the test lab, including location, security, etc.? 
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	101
	C
	C.1.3
	Will tools and resources be specified in the TOs?
	The tools list will be provided in the guidelines, process and procedures (C.13). These may be updated on a Task Order basis.

	102
	C
	C.2
	This statement appear to conflict with B.4.3.b.1.  Does the Government intend that the contractor will work at PTO (Gov site) or at Prime site (contractor)?  Please clarify.
	See answer to question #90.

	103
	C
	C.3
	Would the Government provide advance notice of those occasions when Contractor employees are required to work other than normal business hours?  If so, how long in advance will the Contractor be notified?
	The extent of “advance notice” will be determined on a case-by-case basis. For some cases, the contractor will be asked to provide deployment or testing support after hours in the project schedule. This may be known well in advance (> month). However, changes may occur due to schedule changes, emergencies and other delays. For some cases, the contractor shall be on call for any outage. 

	104
	C
	C.4
	Can the Government clarify more precisely what is meant by "Knowledge Transfer," and more precisely describe the related process that it intends to be put in place by Contractor?
	See answer to question #51.

	105
	C
	C.6
	Does the Government consider the Offeror cost for maintaining a compliant EVMS to be an allowable ODC?
	No.

	106
	C
	C.8
	Does the government intend to provide these development,configuration management, testing and other tools to the contractor as GFE?
	Yes.

	107
	C
	C.10 & C.29
	Does the government intend that Offerors must deliver a QASP as part of the RFP submission or as a deliverable after contract award?
	Yes. See answer to question #89.

	108
	C
	C.10 & C.29
	Will the QASP be made a part of the Contract upon Award?
	See answer to question #89.

	109
	C
	C.10.1
	Will the government please provide access to this document?
	See answer to question #92.

	110
	C
	C.10.1
	The reviewer could not access the site at either of the URLs provided. Will the government please confirm viability of the site location or provide different site data, please.
	See answer to question #92.

	111
	C
	C.12.2.6
	What is the meaning of IFP?  What is the content of this meeting and who conducts it?
	See answer to question #56.

	112
	C
	C.13.1
	Where can we find reference to these BI policies and procedures?
	See final RFP, section C.13.1

	113
	C
	C.13.2
	Will the BI development be a separate task that may encompass analytics for more than one system, or does USPTO expect the contractor to develop BI analytics for systems in each task?
	See answer to Question #112

	114
	C
	C.14
	Will the government please provide access to this document?
	See answer to question #92.

	115
	C
	C.16.8
	What form will positive incentive take?
	See the answer to question #86.

	116
	C
	C.17.7
	How are habitual issues defined?  
	Habitual issues are standard and best practices violations that occur more than one time per contractor. The contractor shall provide QASP metrics in this area. Contractors will deliver products that have been through their own internal review processes. The government does not want to find the same issues over and over in the code, build, installation, configuration deliveries. If government code review sees the same violations and issues from the same contractor, this is a problem. If a release given to the test team fails immediately on every release, this is a problem. The government expects that the CM group will be able to build the code base when released without issues. One issue may be expected the first time. If it takes 2 or 3 corrections before the build can take place, this is a problem. See final RFP section C.12.7

	117
	C
	C.17.7
	What form will negative incentives take?
	Negative incentives may be financial, may be exclusion of the contractor from competing on the next TOS, or remediation on contractor’s time. See final RFP section C.12.7

	118
	C
	C.22.24
	Is the government asking the contractor to provide the tools for testing for another vendor?
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	119
	C
	C.22.25
	Would the Government clarify that no testing activities pertain only to IV&V? The standard practice in software development is for the developer to perform the test execution activities such as unit or integration testing. However, the developing contractor must not serve in an IV&V role. The Offeror recommends removing this section because Section C.22.26 indicates the developing contractor is not permitted to perform in an IV&V role. 
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	120
	C
	C.24,C.25,C.26
	Does USPTO expect the labs to be located in a USPTO facility with GFE, or does the USPTO expect the contractor to acquire a facility to stand up the labs?
	See answer to question #87.

	121
	C
	C.24,C.25,C.26
	What is the distinction between C.24 and C.25? Is C.24 referring to the production lab?
	Deleted, see final RFP.

	122
	C
	C.30 table
	Does the Government mean 7 business days? 
	It means Calendar days, including Saturdays and Sundays.

	123
	C
	C.30 table
	What is a Task Order Plan? Please provide a sample.
	See attachment 7 in section J.2.A.7


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	124
	D
	D.1 Packaging
	Can the Government clarify what it means by "technical deliverables"?
	Technical deliverable are documents which will be identified in each individual Task Order. Examples will be provided with the final RFP which indicates deliverables.

	125
	D
	D.3 Special Distribution Requirements
	Is the Offeror's cost for providing a courier for deliverables an allowable ODC?
	No. That is part of the G&A/ Overhead expenses.


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	126
	E
	E.1 52.252-2  Clause Incorporated by Reference (FEB 1998)
	The Offeror suggests that the Government include FAR 52.246-5 Inspection of Services Cost Reimbursement
	The RFP incorporates the specified inspection clause for a labor hour type contract, FAR §52.246-6.


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	127
	F
	F.3
	In preparing rates for work to be conducted at government facilities, will all of these facilities be in the Metro DC area? 

If not, can a list of possible locations be provided?
	Yes, all will be in the DC Metro Area.

	128
	F
	F.4

	Key Personnel, and H.1 Key Personnel both indicate that the Program Manager shall be considered as Key Personnel and identified by the Contractor. 

Q:
Where in the proposal shall bidders indicate who their proposed Program Manager is and what that person’s qualifications are? 

Q:
Do we need to include the resume?
	See answer to question #3.

	129
	F
	F.6
	F.6(b)(8) states a QASP shall be submitted with the proposal, in accordance with the RFP requirements and any associated requirements identified in this PWS,

Q:
This section states the QASP is required at the time of proposal with subsequent updates.  However Section L does not instruct Offerors to provide a QASP.  Please clarify if the QASP is required at the time of this proposal submission.  
	A QASP is not required with the submission of the proposal. See final RFP section F.6.8

	130
	F
	F.15
	Must subcontractors separately submit Individual Subcontracting Reports and Summary Subcontracting Reports in eSRS?
	See FAR §19.702 and § F.15(c) of the RFP.

	131
	F
	F.15
	Please clarify that QC and IV&V on SDI&T work products is not allowed for the code development contractors under this contract or for contractors outside of this SDI&T contract.
	This section was deleted. See final RFP.

	132
	F
	F.4 (p 29)
	F.4 and H.1 state that the only Key Personnel required is Program Manager. However, it appears that Project Manager is also included as a Key Personnel through H.2, especially where it states “the contractor shall provide resumes for all key personnel assigned to the contract and individual task orders.” Also, Section H.7 specifies that, “the contractor shall propose specific labor categories as ‘Key Personnel’.” Please clarify if the only key personnel position is the Program Manager or if the offeror shall designate additional Key Personnel positions.
	See revised section H.1 of final RFP.

	133
	F
	F.3   
	The work under Section C, Description/Specifications/Work Statement, is to be performed primarily at the contractor's facility (unless otherwise specified in the task order).  However, meetings will be held at the USPTO in Alexandria, Virginia.  

Question: What is the anticipated place of performance for the SDI&T work? If it is split between contractor site and Government site what is the expected percentage at each location?
	It will be specified in each individual Task Order. However, the Project Managers will meet with the COTRs and Task Order Managers weekly. The other meetings will be based on individual Task Orders.

	134
	F
	F.3.a
	C.2 identifies the primary place of performance as the government site at 600 Dulany Street while F.3.a identifies the primary place of performance as contractor site.  Please clarify.
	See answer to question #133.

	135
	F
	F.3
	On page 29 mentions the contractor's facility as the primary place of performance. This contradicts section C.2 which mentions the USPTO campus as the primary place of performance. We request the Government to clarify this.
	See answer to question #133.

	136
	F
	F.3
	On page 29 mentions the contractor's facility as the primary place of performance. Is it sufficient if the contractor site is in the Washington DC metropolitan area or does the Government have any specific limitations/preferences for the contractors’ facility in terms of geographical distance from the USPTO campus in Alexandria, VA?
	See answer to question #133.

	137
	F
	F.6 Contract Deliverables
	(a) The following shall be delivered to the USPTO as required in accordance with the format and criteria shown in Section J.2 List of CDRL Attachments to this solicitation: … 
(9) Invoices...

What is the Government's rationale for including Invoices as a deliverable? The Offeror recommends that Invoices be deleted from this list.
	An invoice is a deliverable and the format is specified in section J.2.D attachment #11. 

	138
	F
	F.6 Contract Deliverables
	(b)  Other Deliverables …

Can the Government specify that these "Other Deliverables" are to be required in the individual task orders as opposed to the master contract?
	These deliverables will be identified in the Task Orders as needed.

	139
	F
	F.12 Deliverables
	(b) For purposes of delivery, all deliverables shall be made by 2:00 P.M. Eastern Standard Time (EST) local time (Washington, DC) at destination, Monday through Friday, unless stated otherwise in the TO.

Can the Government confirm that "at destination" as used in this Section is the same destination indicated in Section D.3.(c)?
	Yes, it is the same destination unless specified differently in the individual Task Order.

	140
	F
	F.6(b)(2)
	The written certification shall be included in the Post-Release plan submitted to the USPTO TOM by the contractor.

Would the Government consider providing the necessary documentation and/or samples for these specific references?
	See final RFP.


	141
	F
	F15
	Page 35-F15 (b) (2): Electronic Subcontracting Reporting System (ESRS): Although the PRIME will submit the subcontracting status report to USPTO, has the subcontractor to separately submit Individual Subcontracting Reports and Summary Subcontracting Reports in ESRS?
	We deal with the primes only.


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	142
	G
	G.8
	If the USPTO does not exercise an option with a contractor, will “soliciting for additional contractors to fulfill this vacancy” be done competively?
	Yes.

	143
	G
	G.7
	On page 39 describes the task order allocation process. Is it the intention that the small business may be competing against the large businesses for individual task orders?
	Yes.

	144
	G
	G.4 Government Furnished Data
	(a) Individual task orders will list any Government-furnished data or reference documents to be provided, with specified delivery dates, to the contractor for use in the performance of this contract.  If the data or reference document, suitable for its intended use, is not delivered to the contractor by the specified date, the COTR will be immediately notified by the contractor, with the contractor indicating the impact and requesting direction from the COTR.  

The Offeror suggests that the Government change the language so that the contractor will notify the Government Contracting Officer.
	This function is delegated to the COTR.

	145
	G
	G.5 Government Furnished Equipment
	(a) Individual task orders will list any Government-furnished equipment to be provided, with specified delivery dates, to the Contractor for use in the performance of this contract.  If the equipment, suitable for its intended use, is not delivered to the contractor by the specified date, the Contractor will immediately notify the COTR, with the Contractor indicating the impact and requesting direction from the COTR.  

The Offeror suggests that the Government change the language so that the contractor will notify the Government Contracting Officer.
	As previously stated in question #144, this function is delegated to the COTR.

	146
	G
	G.5 Government Furnished Equipment
	e) The Contractor shall allocate time and the use of appropriate personnel at the contractor site for all GFE, purchased equipment, hardware, and software for the USPTO's physical inventory conducted at the end of each fiscal year.

The Offeror suggests that physical inventory be requested either as a separate TO or included within the applicable TOs. In addition, is the vendor's cost for providing personnel for the USPTO's physical inventory an allowable ODC?
	The physical inventory will be accounted for at the Task Order level. This is not an allowable ODC. 


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	147
	H
	H.1 and H.7
	H.1 and H.7 are both labeled Key Personnel and there appear to be some overlapping duties between the Program Manager and Project Manager. There also appears to be a requirement that both positions need an alternate, when each could back up the other with no additional Key Personnel needed. 

Q:
Can USPTO please clarify re: the overlapping duties and alternates?
	See the final RFP. These are two separate functions. The Program Manager oversees the whole program. The project manager is the one in charge of specific task orders. Only the Program Manager is considered Key Personnel.

	148
	H
	H7 (f)

	The Contractor shall provide a callback capability for 30 days for key personnel in the event of a stop work order. 

Q:
How will this be implemented if USPTO is not paying for the resource?

Q:
Does this “key personnel” mean just the Program Manager?
	Q.1. This section has been deleted; please see the final RFP.

	149
	H
	H.7
	There are two H.7 sections, one that is “Organizational Conflict of Interest” and the other that is “Key Personnel.” 

Q:
Will the USPTO please clarify these duplicate section numbers?
	Section will be renumbered.

	150
	H
	H.7
	Does the Government consider current work completed under the PMO, IV&V and IDEA-I contracts COI?
	USPTO will have to make a determination on a case-by-case basis at the Task Order level. 

	151
	H
	H.14
	Does the government intends to reconcile the award criteria of the IDIQ (M.3)(overall value) and the task orders (G.7.B1)( price)?
	M.3 Is referring to the Evaluation Factors at the Contract Level. G.7.B1 is addressing the evaluation at the Task Order Level. It is not the intention of the government to reconcile. 

	152
	H
	H.7
	Pages 42-43:  There are two sections labeled H.7 (“Key Personnel” and “Organizational Conflict of Interest”).  Please consider renumbering section H.
	Section will be renumbered in the final RFP.

	153
	H
	H.23
	Pages 50-51:  There are two sections labeled H.23 (“Selected Items of Costs” and “Training”).  Please consider renumbering section H.
	Section will be renumbered in the final RFP.

	154
	H
	H.7
	There are two sections labeled H.7 (“Key Personnel” and “Organizational Conflict of Interest”).  Please consider renumbering section H.
	Section will be renumbered in the final RFP.

	155
	H
	H.23
	There are two sections labeled H.23 (“Selected Items of Costs” and “Training”).  Please consider renumbering section H.
	Section will be renumbered in the final RFP.

	156
	H
	H.1-3 (p 41-42)
	F.4 and H.1 state that the only Key Personnel required is Program Manager. However, it appears that Project Manager is also included as a Key Personnel through H.2, especially where it states “the contractor shall provide resumes for all key personnel assigned to the contract and individual task orders.” Also, Section H.7 specifies that, “the contractor shall propose specific labor categories as ‘Key Personnel’.” Please clarify if the only key personnel position is the Program Manager or if the offeror shall designate additional Key Personnel positions.
	See answer to question #147.

	157
	H
	H.7 (p 43)
	To allow potential bidders to best evaluate their options, we recommend that the Government provide more specific detail on potential conflicts of interest that arise as related to current contracts for work at the USPTO (for example, IDEAI, Patent Data Capture, and Patent Dissemination Solution).
	It will be addressed in individual task orders.

	158
	H
	H.2/H.3
	H.2 calls for a Project Manager and H.3 calls for a Program Manager.  Both are defined as the primary POC for the CO and the CO’s Representative.  Please clarify the roles of the Project and Program Managers.  
	See answer to question #147.

	159
	H
	H.7 KP (a) and (b)
	Does LH stand for “Labor Hour”?
	Yes.

	160
	H
	H.7 OCI (a)
	There are two sections numbered H.7.  This question refers to the second on OCI.  LOFC clauses will be included in individual TOs. Can contractors elect not to bid?
	Yes

	161
	H
	H.16
	Would USPTO support the concept of a contract wide Non-Disclosure Agreement that all Associate Contractors would be required to sign? 
	Great suggestion, but for various reasons we determined that it will be decided at the Task Order level.

	162
	H
	H.2
	On page 41 mentions that the contractor will supply a 'Project Manager'. Will the ‘Project Manager' services be for a specific task order or will it extend to multiple task orders under this contract?
	It depends on how the contractor will assign the work. Also, see question #147.

	163
	H
	H.2
	On page 41 requires the Project Manager to be single point-of-contact for the Contracting Officer's Representative (COR). Section H.3 on page 42 requires the Program Manager to be the single point of contact to the COR. We request the Government to clarify this.
	The Program Manager is the single Point-of-Contact with the COTR. See final RFP section H.1

	164
	H
	H.7
	On page 42 requires the contractor to propose specific labor categories as "Key Personnel". Is this a requirement for the specific task orders under this contract? Or do we need to specify the "Key Personnel" as part of the proposal response to the contract solicitation?
	See answer to question #147.

	165
	H
	H.7
	What is the LH contract?
	Labor Hour Contract.

	166
	H
	H.7
	Is the Government referring to individual task orders issued under this contract?
	Yes.

	167
	H
	H.2 Project Manager
	Does the Government mean "Contracting Officer's Technical Representative (COTR) in this sentence?
	Yes. It means Contracting Officer’s Technical Representative. 

	168
	H
	H.2 Project Manager
	Will the Government confirm that the only key personnel on the contract level is the Program Manager?  All other key personnel will be specified on the task order level?
	See answer to question #147.

	169
	H
	H.2 Project Manager
	The Contractor shall provide a Project Manager; who shall be the single point of contact for the Contracting Officer’s Representative (COR) ...

Does the Government mean "Contracting Officer's Technical Representative (COTR) in this sentence?
	See answer to question 167.

	170
	H
	H.2 Project Manager
	The contractor shall provide resumes for all key personnel assigned to the contract and individual task orders.

Will the Government confirm that the only key personnel on the contract level is the Program Manager?  All other key personnel will be specified on the task order level?
	See answer to question #147.

	171
	H
	H.2 Project Manager
	The contractor shall only assign qualified personnel to each task order.

Can the Government define what it means by "qualified personnel?"
	In each individual Task Order, we will identify qualifications/ experience required for personnel in each individual Task Order.

	172
	H
	H.2 Project Manager
	The contractor shall permit the USPTO to approve resumes of any personnel before their start date.

The Offeror requests that the Government delete this language.
	See final RFP.

	173
	H
	H.3 Program Manager
	H.3.1 The Program Manager shall also be the primary point of contact for the Contracting Officer and designated representatives of the Contracting Officer.  

The Offeror suggests that this language be revised as follows:  "The vendor's Contract Officer is the primary point of contact for the USPTO Contracting Officer.  The Program Manager shall be the primary point of contact for the designated representatives of the Contracting Officer."
	Thank you for your recommendation, but the language in this provision will not be changed.

	174
	H
	H.3 Program Manager
	H.3.2 During any absence of the Program Manager, only one alternate shall have full authority to act for the Contractor on all matters relating to this contract.  

The Offeror suggests that this language be revised as follows:  "During any absence of the Program Manager, only one alternate shall have full authority to act for the Contractor on all technical matters relating to this contract."
	Thank you for your recommendation, but the language in this provision will not be changed.

	175
	H
	H.3 Program Manager
	H.3.3  The Program Manager shall be available to the Contracting Officer via telephone between the hours of 0800 and 1700 EST Monday through Friday and shall respond within 8 hours of notification for discussion and resolution of technical problems.

The Offeror suggests that this language be revised as follows:  "The Program Manager shall be available to the COTR via telephone ...."
	Changed the final RFP to read both CO & COTR.

	176
	H
	H.3 Program Manager
	H.3.4 The Program Manager shall notify the USPTO TOM and the USPTO COTR when the funding level reaches seventy-five percent (75%) of the total amount associated with each Task Order issued.  (Deliverable)

The Offeror suggests that this language be revised as follows:  "The vendor's Contract Officer shall notify the USPTO Contracting Officer when the funding level reaches seventy-five (75%) percent..."  The Offeror recommends that this notification not be designated a Deliverable.
	Changed; please see final RFP Section H.1.J

	177
	H
	H.7 Key Personnel
	(a)  The contractor shall propose specific labor categories as “Key Personnel”.  The USPTO will determine which of these positions are determined as “Key Personnel”, and the following will apply to those labor categories: ...

Can the Government confirm that this language pertains only to task orders issued under this contract?  If not, is the vendor to propose key personnel on the contract level in addition to the Program Manager?
	See answer to question #147.

	178
	H
	H.7 (sic) Organizational Conflict of Interest
	Should this Section be numbered as H.8 and subsequent Sections re-numbered accordingly?
	The section has been renumbered in the final RFP.

	179
	H
	H.7 (sic) Organizational Conflict of Interest
	The SDI&T contractor may serve as an unbiased third party in the review of other Government contractors' plans, performance and products.

The Offeror recommends the Government modify or delete this section to avoid creating OCI issues.
	Thank you for your recommendation, but the language in this provision will not be changed. 

	180
	H
	H.30
	…the Contractor shall submit for approval to the USPTO a System Certification and Accreditation package, within 14 days after receipt of direction from the USPTO CACG.

Please clarify what system the reference is to?
	As stated in section H.30: If the system belong to the contractor, then it is up to the contractor to certify that system. 

	181
	H
	H.1 & H.2
	Does the Government consider the Project Manager role as key personnel as well?  Please clarify.
	See answer to question #147.


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	182
	I
	J.2 & J.3
	List of CDRL Attachments, and
List of Other Attachments

Q:
There were no attachments included, and because they are critical to Offerors being able to respond adequately to the requirements of this RFP, will the USPTO please post as soon as possible? 
	Please see the final RFP for relevant documents.


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	183
	J
	J.3.E (p 67)
	The list of Attachments includes Attachment 17: Awards, Certifications, and Quality Recognition. This is not included in the Technical Volume information or as an evaluation factor. Is the Government planning on adding this as an evaluation factor?
	See final RFP. This was deleted. 

	184
	J
	J.2
	On page 66 and section J.3 on page 67 lists the attachments pertinent to the submission of proposals. These attachments were not part of the draft RFP and we request the Government to release these attachments at the earliest before the release of the final RFP.
	See answer to question #182.

	185
	J
	J.2 List of CDRL Attachments
	The following attachments provide the CDRL forms and information that are required for the submission of proposals.  The attachments are hereby made a part of this solicitation and any resultant contract. 
A. Contract Deliverables: D. Attachment 11: Invoices

The Offeror requests that Invoices not be designated as Deliverables.
	See answer to question #137.

	186
	J
	J.1
	Life Cycle Management for Automated Information Systems, April 2001 

Would the Government consider providing the necessary documentation and/or samples for these specific references?
	See final RFP, section J.1

	187
	J
	Referenced Draft RFP Section: Multiple, including C (Statement of Work/Specifications) and J (List of Attachments)
	In a number of sections of the Draft RFP, a number of documents, templates, and websites are referenced.  A few representative examples are:

OCIO Roadmap Transformation Initiatives (page 10)

USPTO SDLC (page 14)

http://ptoweb/ptointranet/cisd/cio/sdlc/sdlc.html (page 13)

USPTO Business Intelligence policies and procedures (page 15) 

USPTO Defect Management Plan (page 18)

Will the Government consider providing access to these and other reference materials, possibly in the form of a reference library or alternative forum for access?
	Access will be made available to the Contracts Library:

http://www.uspto.gov/about/vendor_info/current_acquisitions/sdit/sdithom.jsp
http://www.uspto.gov/about/vendor_info/current_acquisitions/sdit/sdit_proj_library.jsp



	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	188
	K
	K.2
	Section K.2 (a) (2) on page 68 mentions the small business size standard as $23.0 Million. Section K.2 (a) (3) on page 68 mentions the small business size standard as 500 employees. We request the Government to clarify the small business standard applicable to this contract – is it $23.0 Million or is it 500 employees?
	See final RFP, sections for Reps and Certs.

	189
	K
	K.5
	If an offeror is submitting an EVMS plan, is the preferred outline for content the items listed under K.5.b on page 71?
	Yes.


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	190
	L
	Paragraph L.9.1.b.2 on page 82 and L.6.2.a
	Refers to 'the following 3 sections' of the Technical Proposal, but only describes two sections.  Can you advise if a section description is missing, or if the '3' should have been '2'?  
	'3' should have been '2.' Please see final RFP.

	191
	L
	L.9.2.6
	Can the Govt. identify approximately how much time offerors will have between orals notification for the Sample Task and Orals presentation? 
	The time will be specified in a notification letter. 

	192
	L
	M3.2.2 and L.9.2.1.2
	Relative to Government Best Practices and in line with OMB directives, Past Performance evaluations requires that the Government “must include the method of evaluating the information and its relevancy, and the relative rank or applicable weight assigned to current and past performance”.

Given that Open Ratings does not openly provide the algorithm for the weighting of Client historical ratings and aged  irrelevant ratings which may be combined in the overall rating would the Government consider creating the surveys and have them returned to USPTO to enable thorough and relevant review and direct contact with past performance references? 

These are excerpts from their site: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/rewrite/procurement/contract_perf/best_practice_re_past_perf.html
	USPTO is not ranking by numbers, the Government is using adjective ratings. Section M.3.2.2 of the RFP indicates the relative weight that will be assigned to past performance in the evaluation of proposals. Regarding your request, it is the USPTO’s intent to streamline the past performance evaluation under this RFP. Creation and evaluation of the individual surveys would defeat that purpose. It is the agency’s opinion that the stated past performance evaluation methodology complies with all required regulations and policy.

	193
	L
	L.6.1.d and L.9.2.2.1
	L.6.1.d and L.9.2.2.1 require Financial Statements to be submitted with the Price Proposal. 

Q:
What specific financial statement information is required, and for what period of time?
	See final RFP.

	194
	L
	L.6
	L.6
Submissions of Proposals
2.
Proposal 

a. Indicates that Technical Proposal is “Made up of three (3) sections,” but lists only Section 1, with Subsection A and B and Section 2. 

Q:
Are the three (3) sections 1A, 1B and 2, or is a Section 3 missing?  
	See answer to question #190.

	195
	L
	L.9.1

	General Instructions. Pg. 66 - b.2. 

Q:
Can USPTO please clarify the page limitations, or lack thereto, for each section/subsection of the Price & Technical Proposals?
	See final RFP, section L.

	196
	L
	L.9.2.6

	Q:
How much time will be given for preparation?  

Q:
How soon after proposal submission will USPTO conduct Orals?

Q:
Will PTO supply an example of a Sample Task for Oral Presentation with the RFP? 

Q:
Can the government provide the evaluation criteria for Sample Task and Oral Presentation?
	Q1 – We anticipate 30 days.

Q2 – Once the competitive range has been established.  

Q3 – No

Q4 – See Section M.3.6 

	197
	L
	L.9.2.6
	For Oral presentations, the Government refers to Sample Task Orders to be addressed. Does the Government intend to award Task Orders with the award of the SDI&T IDIQ contract?
	Yes – we intend to issue as soon as possible, but not on the day of the signing of the contract.

	198
	L
	L.6.2.a
	Page 81 and L.9.1.b.2 on pages 82-83:  Is it the USPTO’s intent to have the two subsections that make up Section 1 and Section 2 count as the three sections mentioned, or is there a section missing?
	See answer to question #190.

	199
	L
	L.6 2.a, & L.9.1
	The third section of the Technical Proposal was not detailed. Please provide the details on what is to be submitted with the proposal response. Alternately, please clarify that these details will be provided later, and are only to be a part of the oral presentation.
	See answer to question #190.

	200
	L
	L.6.2.a.1 (p 81)
	The current format provides the offeror no opportunity to introduce the company and the proposal. We request the inclusion of a two page executive summary to the front of the Technical Proposal.
	No.

	201
	L
	L.9.1.2 (p 82)
	In the table listing the proposal sections, number of copies, and page limits, the Volume called “Technical Proposal” indicates: “Containing the following 3 sections”. However, only two Sections are listed. Please clarify.
	See answer to question #190.

	202
	L
	L.9.2.1 (p 84)
	We recommend that the Government add a “Knowledge of USPTO” section for offerors to provide potential technological solutions to USPTO issues as an evaluation factor to the Technical Proposal. This section, along with relevant past performance, provides a tool for the Government to conduct an effective multi-phase source selection by focusing on offerors that can demonstrate a clear understanding of the USPTO environment.
	No; the Evaluation Criteria will not be changed to reflect “Knowledge of the USPTO”. See final RFP. 

	203
	L
	L.9.2.1.1.a.1 (p 84)
	The bullet states, “Demonstrate the Offeror’s ability to perform the SDI&T activities specified in C.3 of this solicitation.” However, C.3 is “Support Hours of Operation.” Please provide clarification.
	See final RFP.

	204
	L
	L.9.2.1.1.c (p 85)
	Transition is a critical component in the starting up of any operation. Therefore, we request that sub-bullet e, “Software Maintenance and Transition,” be split into two distinct sub-bullets, with software maintenance treated separately from contract transition.
	Please see the correction in the final RFP.

	205
	L
	L.9.2.1.1.c.3 (p 85)
	The majority of task orders issued under this vehicle are expected to be between $500K and $2M. To ensure that offerors can demonstrate an ability to provide high quality products and development in efforts this size, we recommend that the Government add a requirement that two of the five required past performances be contracts or task orders valued between $500K and $2M.
	Noted.

	206
	L
	L.9.2.2.1 (p 86)
	The Price Proposal Instructions include a section for Financial Statements. Can the Government provide guidance as to what is expected in this section?
	See answer to question #193.

	207
	L
	L.9.2.2.1 (p 86)
	The Price Proposal Instructions include a section for Uncompensated Overtime Policy. Can the Government provide guidance as to what is expected in this section?
	Please refer to L.9.2.2.1.b

	208
	L
	M.3.3 (p 93)
	Please provide more detail as to the approach for determining if labor rates/prices are fair and responsible.
	USPTO will incorporate market research on contractors that offer similar services.

	209
	L
	L.2.1.1
	Section 1 c.3. states, “For all businesses proposing as the prime contractor, contracts valued at $ $500,000 or more for prime contract references.” 

Question: What is “$ $500,000”?
	Please see the final RFP.

	210
	L
	L.8
	We understand that there is no Small Business Set-Aside.

Question:  Are there any evaluation preferences being given to Small Business when determining the competitive range? Or is it a strict head to head competition for entry into the competitive range?
	No, there are no preferences being given to Small Businesses when determining the competitive range. We anticipate multiple awards based on the demonstration of capabilities and work performance as stated in the Statement of Work .

	211
	L
	L.9.2.2.1.a
	We understand that USPTO will provide labor categories in Attachment J-13 and that we are to provide fully burdened fixed hourly rates for each in our Price Proposal.  Will USPTO also provide hour estimates for each labor category and estimates for incidental hardware, commercial off-the-shelf software and ODCs and require the contractors to provide a total price for the contract?
	No, the USPTO will not provide the hour estimates for each Labor Category. USPTO has provided in the RFP Section B the Not-to-Exceed amount of Labor-Hours per year. It is the responsibility of the contractor to provide the best labor-mix based on the requirements stated in Section C. 

Q.2 See section B: CLIN 0002D – Incidental Hardware and CLIN 0002E – Commercial-Off the-Shelf Software. 

	212
	L
	L.9.2.6.d
	Are we correct in reading that no computers will be allowed for orals?  
	As stated in L.9.2.6 part d “no other visual aids will be permitted.”

	213
	L
	L.9.1.b - 2
	Section L.9.1.b - 2 on page 82 mentions the past performance reference worksheet page limit to be 10 pages. Section L.9.2.1.1 on page 84 requires the offeror to provide five past performance references. Given the scope of the contract, we request the Government to increase the page limits of the past performance reference worksheets to 15 pages.
	Number must remain at 10 pages.

	214
	L
	L.9.2.1.1
	Section L.9.2.1.1 - line item a-1 on page 84 refers to C.3. Does the Government mean to reference C.1 in lieu of C.3?
	See final RFP.

	215
	L
	L.9.2.1.1
	Section L.9.2.1.1 on page 84 requires the offeror to provide five past performance references.  In order to meet the past performance reference restrictions listed in section L.9.2.1.1 - d on page 85, for a small business submitting the offer, we request the Government to reduce the number of past performance references to three.
	The number will remain at 5.

	216
	L
	L.9.2.2.1
	If an offeror is submitting an EVMS plan, is the preferred outline for content the items listed under K.5.b on page 71?
	Yes.

	217
	L
	L.6/ L.9.1.b.2/ L.9.2.2.1
	Financial Statements are mentioned in three places within Section L but are never defined. Will the government provide a list of required documents in the final solicitation? Are these to be included only as soft copy per section L.6 or also included with the hard copy as implied in L.9.1.b.2 (p. 83)?
	See answer to question #193.

	218
	L
	L.9.1.b.2/ L.9.2.1.2
	The General Instructions for Volume I, Section 2 ask for “Confirmation of Past Performance Evaluation Order Submission to Open Systems Ratings, Inc.”  There is no specific instruction for documenting this requirement in the subsequent section description (L.9.2.1.2). Is a payment receipt from the transaction adequate to meet this requirement?  If not, what specifically will the government accept as proof of the Open Ratings submission for Volume I, Section 2?
	Yes – a payment receipt is okay.

	219
	L
	L.9.1.c.3
	L.9.1.c.3 states “Dividers with tabs must be inserted between the sections and subsections, with each section or subsection starting on a new page.  These dividers must not be numbered.” Is the government’s intent for these tabs to be blank/ unlabeled?  If not, what information should be included (e.g., section title)?
	It is the government intent that they be labeled with the section name/ title. 

	220
	L
	L.9.2.e
	L.9.2.e pertains to termination actions.  If the offeror has no termination actions to disclose, should this section contain a statement to that effect?
	Yes.

	221
	L
	L.9.2.2.2.a.a     
	What is the anticipated need for one courier trip to USPTO per work day?
	One trip per day.

	222
	L
	L.9.2.5
	Will USPTO provide a list of those contracts they believe constitute contract-level conflict of interest?
	This will be addressed at the task order level.

	223
	L
	L.9.1
	Would USPTO allow for a brief executive summary for each volume of the proposal?
	See answer to question #200.

	224
	L
	L.9.1
	The table indicates that the Technical Proposal contains three sections but only Sections 1 and 2 are listed in the table.  Please clarify is there a Section 3 or is this referring to Section 1, parts A and B, and Section 2 as “three sections?”
	See answer to question #190.

	225
	L
	L.9.2.1.1 (2)
	Does the reference here to “(prime contractor only)” mean that offerors should only reference task orders in which we are a prime contractor to the government, or is this meant to indicate that only the prime offeror’s references may be used and not references from any of our proposed subcontractors?
	Yes, only references from the prime contractor will be accepted. Per language stated in Section L.9.2.1.1 “The Government is seeking five (5) reference contracts for the offeror who is proposing as the prime contractor” and not the sub-contractor.

	226
	L
	L.9.2.1.1.d.6
	The primary function of the contract shall be providing SDI&T services similar to the ones described in section C.3 of this solicitation.

Section C.3 refers to Support Hours of Operation. Would the Government please clarify?
	See answer to question #203.

	227
	L
	L..9.2.1.2
	...the offeror shall complete a past performance evaluation to Open Ratings, Inc. (a Dunn & Bradstreet company)

The Offeror recommends the Government not use the D&B service. Our experience with other Government Agencies on previous contracting efforts shows D&B does not provide a timely response.
	See answer to question #192.

	228
	L
	L.9.2.6
	Those offerors who are included in the competitive range will be asked to make an oral presentation that will address the offeror's technical approach to some Sample Tasks.

How far in advance of orals will the sample tasks be given to those in the competitive range?  
	Instructions will be provided in the oral presentation notification letter.

	229
	L
	L6-2
	Page 81-L6-2 (a): Submission of Proposals: It states that the Technical Proposal is made up of three sections, but the third section is missing. Section3 is also missing in page 85-86 L.9.2. Please clarify.
	See answer to question #190.

	230
	L
	L.9.1.b.2 on page 82
	Paragraph L.9.1.b.2 on page 82 of the draft Soliciatation DOC52PAPT1000015, refers to 'the following 3 sections' of the Technical Proposal, but only describes two sections.  Can you advise if a section desciption is missing, or if the '3' shold have been '2'?
	See answer to question #190.

	231
	L
	L.2 (f) (4) Instructions to Offerors – Contract Award

Page #:  77
	The Draft RFP states “The Government intends to evaluate proposals and award a contract after conducting discussions with offerors whose proposals have been determined to be within the competitive range.”

Is the “competitive range” based solely on a price determination or does this range take into account a weighting of both technical and pricing considerations? Please clarify.
	The admission into the “competitive range” will be based on a combination of criteria outlined in section: M.3 Evaluation of Individual Proposals.

	232
	L
	L.8 (a) Percent of the set-aside

Page #:  82
	The Draft RFP states “Any large businesses receiving a contract award must have a subcontracting plan which establishes a goal of at least 30 percent of the contract value for small business participation.”

Will the Government consider allowing the usage of second-tier small business subcontractors towards the achievement of the overall 30% small business subcontracting goal?
	No.

	233
	L
	L.9.1 (b) (2) General Instructions

Page #:  82 
	Please specify actual page limits for each volume / section / subsection.
	See final RFP for section L.

	234
	L
	L.9.2.1.1 Experience Factor Proposal Instructions

Page #:  84
	We would also respectfully request inclusion of subcontractors for evaluation for the following reasons: 

Given the ever-evolving nature of the technology landscape, forward-looking firms build alliances and teaming strategies to leverage specialization among other companies – to provide the right skills, at the right time, to deliver the right solution for the Government.

Given the USPTO minimum goal of 30% of the contract, USPTO would be well served to gain insight into the caliber of small business expertise a prime contractor would include on their respective teams. 

Given the integrated nature of likely projects, the ability of the prime contractor to build a strong team, and proven ability execute successfully with subcontractors, is very relevant to successful project outcomes for USPTO.

Evaluating the prime, without taking into consideration the entire team, limits the evaluator’s view of the value the entire team can deliver for critical USPTO tasks.
	Subcontractors will not be evaluated by the USPTO, only the prime.

	235
	L
	L.9.2.1.1
	It would appear that only the prime contractor’s experience will be allowed to be offered. Would the USPTO consider allowing two, or some, of the five references to be from a teaming partner (1st tier subcontractor)?
	No.


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	236
	M
	M3.5
	If an offeror is submitting an EVMS plan, is the preferred outline for content the items listed under K.5.b on page 71?
	Yes.

	237
	M
	M.3.1 Technical Evaluation Factors

Page #:  92
	We suggest the Government consider the following factors as mandatory evaluation factors for offerors proposing as prime contractors:

Demonstrated success in performance-based service contracts

Rating of CMMI (Capability Maturity Model Integration) designation of Level 3
	No.


	Question #
	Section
	Sub-Section
	Questions
	Answers

	238
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Does the government intend to allow Joint Ventures to bid on this opportunity?

If the government allows Joint Ventures to bid on this opportunity, will past performances only be allowed for JV's with that have prime experience working, and not member past performances (i.e.: from member companies.
	It’s up to the contractor but one prime needs to be identified., and only the prime’s past performance will be evaluated.

	239
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Does the government intend to allow Mentor Protege companies to bid on this opportunity
	No.

	240
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Will the past performance requirement  (5 of equal size/value) be the same for the small business award?
	Yes.

	241
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Will small business awardee be bidding against large awardees at Task Order level?
	Yes.

	242
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	What is the COI requirement at this time for companies performing on IDEA-I and IV&V contracts?
	Please see answers to questions number 150 and 157.

	243
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	The Government does not include expectations for .ing tasks from the incumbents to the SDI&T awardees. Are transition tasks expected and will they be priced separately outside of the pricing evaluation as to allow a fair and equal evaluation of potential awardees?
	Expectations will be defined at the task order level (see final RFP).

	244
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	How USPTO will monitor the performance of Subcontractors and /or the actual participation percentage received by Subcontractor from the PRIME? 
	1) It is the responsibility of the Prime to monitor subcontractor performance

2) Participation percentages should be defined in the Prime’s (large business) subcontracting plan and reported on a yearly basis. 

	245
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Are there any conflict of interest issues that will preclude existing USPTO’s Prime Contractors and Subcontractors to bid and also work on this SDI&T contract?
	Yes, those contractors who are primes or subcontractors on the IV&V. contract. Also, see answer to question number 157.

	246
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Can a subcontractor work with Two (2) Primes on the SDI&T contract?
	It’s up to the Prime/sub agreement.

	247
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	The Draft RFP indicates that it is the Government's intention to award to at least one small business.  How will the Government ensure that an award is made to at least one small business?  Are there any evaluation factors that will allow small businesses to be competitive with large businesses?  Alternatively, will the pool of small businesses be considered separately from the pool of large businesses during the evaluation, with at least one award being made to a contractor from the small business pool?
	No, there will be multiple awards & this information is provided in the final RFP.

	248
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Would the Government be willing to consider creating a small business set-aside for this Draft RFP? 
	No. 

	249
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Will there be a list of skill sets to bid on or do we bid on a blended rate? 
	We are providing the labor categories needed for this requirement. Each Labor Category will require labor rates. See section J for existing labor categories. Government will be receptive to contractors submitting a different mix of labor categories as they see fit to accomplish these requirements. 

	250
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Will there be a lead contractor on the project?
	No.

	251
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	How many different locations are there… and are they all centrally located? 
	If your question is referring to Government location, USPTO only has one central site which is located in Alexandria, VA. 

	252
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	If we submit a response as a small disadvantaged business, even though we have several hundred qualifies people at our disposal, would it be better if we proposed a smaller number of people (perhaps 50 or 60)?  
	The decision should be made by the offeror.

	253
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Should we assume that the largest bidder (i.e. the company proposing the largest number of programmers, etc.) will be the lead contractor for this project?  
	No.

	254
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Are Raytheon and CSC continuing and should we contact either of them proposing ourselves as subs for this contract?
	This is up to each offeror.

	255
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	I have a couple of questions on the above Special Notice.  I am fairly new at responding to government bids and as I was looking at the daily FedBizOpps posting I saw this Special Notice DOC52PAPT1000015.  The company I represent, does Independent Verification and Validation Services, but I am not sure that this is part of the bid.
	This is not an IV & V contract. See answer to question #256.

	256
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	We do not do software development, but we perform the verification and validation of the software.  Would we be able to bid on that portion of the solicitation or is it all or nothing?
	There are no verification and validation requirements in this solicitation.  As stated in Section M.2 the offerors must address all factors set forth in Section L.

	257
	Miscellaneous
	N/A
	Which companies are limited from participating as prime contractors or subcontractors on SDI&T by conflicts of interest?
	See answer to question #245.
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